
 
 

NOTE: If you need disability modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting, please contact the Commission 
office at (559) 558-4900 at least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting.  Government Code Section 54954.2(a). 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

DATE:  Wednesday, December 10, 2025 Lighthouse for Children 
2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 TIME: 12:00 p.m. – Regular Meeting 

 

This meeting will be teleconferenced at the following location: 
La Piazza, 15 Moraga Way, Orinda, CA 94563 

This meeting will also be broadcasted to the public via Zoom using the following link: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84223058193?pwd=iqMfYmkchaMzP4VlQWIJ6glFsqbo7G.1 

Meeting ID: 842 2305 8193 | Passcode: 978517 
The public may participate in the meeting, as otherwise permitted under the Brown Act, by joining using the link above.  

AGENDA 
ITEM SUBJECT PRESENTER 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Chavez 

2.  
POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Any Commission Member who has potential conflict of interest may now identify the item and 
recuse themselves from discussing and voting on the matter. 

Chair Chavez 

3. 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
This portion of the agenda is reserved for members of the public desiring to address the 
Commission on any matter not on this agenda. Limit two minutes per speaker. 

Chair Chavez 

4. 
Action 

Pg. 1 

CONSENT AGENDA – ITEM 4a 
See attached Consent Agenda. 
 

Overview: These matters are routine in nature and are usually approved by a single vote.  Prior 
to action by the Commission, the public will be given the opportunity to comment on any 
Consent Item.   

Chair Chavez 
F. González, E.D. 

5. 
Action 

Pg. 5 

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 2025 
Supporting Documents 

F. González, E.D.   
A. Hillis, Staff 

6. 
Action 
Pg. 11 

AGREEMENT WITH CHILDREN’S FUNDING PROJECT FOR A CHILD CARE 
COST MODELING COHORT 

F. González, E.D. 
K. Rangel, Staff 

7. 
Information 

Pg. 13 
FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 EVALUATION ACTIVITIES UPDATE 

F. González, E.D.   
H. Norman, Staff 

8. 
Information 

Pg. 15 
STRATEGIC PLAN FOCUS AREA PRESENTATION: EARLY LEARNING 

F. González, E.D.   
L. Salcedo, Staff 

9. 
Information 

Pg. 16 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

F. González, E.D.   

10. 
Information ANNOUNCEMENTS / INFORMATION SHARING 

Chair Chavez 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Chavez 

NOTE: NEXT REGULAR MEETING – JANUARY 28, 2026  
 

2405 Tulare St. 
Fresno, CA 93721 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84223058193?pwd=iqMfYmkchaMzP4VlQWIJ6glFsqbo7G.1


We encourage the public to attend. If you have a disability and need accommodations to participate in a meeting, please contact 
the Commission office at (559) 558-4900 at least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting.  Government Code Section 54954.2(a). 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

DATE: Wednesday, December 10, 2025 Lighthouse for Children 
2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 TIME: 12:00 p.m. – Regular Meeting 

CONSENT AGENDA 
(Any Commissioner may pull any Consent Item for discussion or separate vote.) 

ITEM       SUBJECT PRESENTER 

4a. 
Action 

Pg. 2 
OCTOBER 29, 2025 REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

F. González, E.D.

1



Consent Agenda Item 4a 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
December 10, 2025 – 12:00 p.m. 

2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NO. 4a 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Approve the October 29, 2025, Commission Meeting Minutes. 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 
October 29, 2025 – 12:00 p.m. 

PRESENT: Kari Gilbert, Hugo Morales, Sabrina Beavers, Susan Holt, Erika Martinez, Marcia 
Sablan 

ABSENT: Luis Chavez 

STAFF: Fabiola González, Ashley Hensley, Alix Hillis, Kendalyn Mack-Franklin, Hannah 
Norman, Lupita Ramirez, Karen Rangel, Liliana Salcedo, Alex Treas, Craig 
Armstrong (Legal Counsel) 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 12:00 pm

2. POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

None heard.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

None heard.

4. CONSENT AGENDA – ITEMS 4a – 4c

The Commission approved the Consent Agenda.

Motion by: Beavers Second by: Morales
Ayes: Beavers, Gilbert, Holt, Martinez, Morales, Sablan
Noes: None heard.

2



Consent Agenda Item 4a 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – STATE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

Public hearing opened at 12:03 p.m. and closed at 12:04 p.m.

Public Comment: none heard

6. STATE ANNUAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

The Commission inquired about different data markers related to participant outcomes and
geographic location that are collected as part of the evaluation activities. Staff shared the types
of data that have been collected in the past and that they are currently working with the
Commission’s newly contracted evaluation firm to develop our Theory of Change, including what 
data will be collected as part of the evaluation efforts moving forward. Regular updates and
presentations will be shared at future regular meetings via staff presentation or Executive
Director’s report.

The Commission approved the State Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2024-2025.

Public Comment: None heard.

Motion by: Morales Second by: Sablan
Ayes: Beavers, Gilbert, Holt, Martinez, Morales, Sablan
Noes: None heard.

7. FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

Commissioner Morales asked Price Paige & Company’s staff the best practice in alternating audit 
companies. Price Paige & Company staff responded that typically after seven years it is
recommended to alternate companies to ensure fresh perspectives. Price Paige & Company staff
highlighted that their staff members are different per year to allow renewed insight during audits 
but ultimately it is the Commission’s decision on when to procure new audit services.
Commission staff confirmed audit services are procured according to the Commission’s
procurement policies and procedures.

The Commission approved the Financial Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

Public Comment: None heard. 

Motion by: Morales Second by: Holt 
Ayes: Beavers, Gilbert, Holt, Martinez, Morales, Sablan 
Noes: None heard. 

8. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Public Comment: None heard.

No action required.

3



Consent Agenda Item 4a 

9. ANNOUNCEMENT / INFORMATION SHARING

Public Comment: None heard.

No action required.

10. CLOSED SESSION:

Commissioner Morales exited the meeting at 1:05 p.m.

There was no action to report out of closed session.

11. CONSIDERATION OF REAL PROPERTY OFFER

Legal Counsel, Craig Armstrong, recommended the following action for consideration: Accept
the offer from Mr. Wathiq Khanis for the purchase of the Commission’s real property known as
the Huron Family Learning Center, located at 36602 Central Ave. Huron, California 93234 for the
total purchase price of $210,500 and to authorize the Executive Director to execute all
instruments necessary to effect the sale of the property.

Public Comment: None heard.

Motion by: Beavers Second by: Sablan
Ayes: Beavers, Gilbert, Holt, Martinez,  Sablan
Noes: None heard.

12. ADJOURNMENT: 1:40 p.m.

Motion by: Martinez Second by: Beavers
Ayes: Beavers, Gilbert, Holt, Martinez, Sablan
Noes: None heard.

4



Agenda Item 5 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
December 10, 2025 – 12:00 p.m. 

2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

TO:  Children & Families Commission of Fresno County 

FROM:  Fabiola González, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Financial Report for Period Ending September 2025 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Accept the financial report for period ending September 30, 2025. 

BACKGROUND: 

This item is intended to keep the Commission apprised of financial activity as of September 30, 2025 
(25% of the year) and to provide an opportunity to discuss and review financial activities for the 
reporting period.  

KEY POINTS:   

The following are key points of the attached financials for context. 

A. Revenues: $2,304,713 (24% received)

• Proposition 10 Revenue: $1,910,252 (31% received) – First 5 California has reported
Proposition 10 revenue through September 2025 and Quarter 1 of CECET Revenue has been
received. Proposition 56 backfill was received in March which will be included in a
subsequent financial report. 

• Investment Earnings (Unrealized Gains/Losses): $166,855 (65% received) –Year to date, the
Fund has experienced gains on the investment portfolio; more than anticipated for the first
quarter of the fiscal year.

B. FY25-26 Strategic Plan Investment Area Awards: $1,097,941 (25% of budget committed/assigned)
• Development of procurement, contracts, and awards are on target and within budget

constraints. Further procurements and contracts to award under these areas will be brought
to the Commission in forthcoming months.

C. Externally Funded Programs: $2,663,220 (100% of budget committed) – These dollars represent
contracts from external funding sources. Contracts for the First 5 California IMPACT Hub are
fully executed.

5



Agenda Item 5 

D. Accountability and Evaluation: $400,000 (84% of budget committed) – Contracts for the
evaluation contractor and the program database have been fully awarded for the fiscal year. The
remaining amount is for future database-related procurements.

E. Operating Expenses: $472,751 (24% of budget expensed) – All expenses are on track for the year
and within budget limits.

F. Continuing Service Provider Expenses: $68,768 (1% expended) – These funds represent the
payments made to active contracts the Commission committed from previous budget- in prior
fiscal years, for multi-year contracts.  Expenses for quarter one of the fiscal year are reported in
October. Further expenditures will show in subsequent periods.

Attached are the Financial Report detailing what was summarized above, the Financial Charts included 
to show the make-up of the Commission’s assets and Fund Balance, and the month to month and 
historical comparisons of Proposition 10 revenue received. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Overall, expenses are within budget constraints for fiscal year 2025-2026. 

6



FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY

FINANCIAL REPORT  | SEPTEMBER 2025 (25%)

Budget Actual/Awarded Variance

07/01/2025-06/30/2026 07/01/2025-09/30/2025
 ▌Budget Target 

(25%) 

Revenues Budget Actual Balance

Proposition 10 Revenue $6,240,728 $1,910,252 31%

External Revenue

First 5 CA IMPACT Regional Hub Program $2,641,620 $23,692 1%

Other Revenue $100,221 $41,070 41%

Interest Revenue - County Treasury $205,375 $162,844 79%

Investment Earnings (Unrealized Gains/Losses) $257,990 $166,855 65%

Revenues Total $9,492,534 $2,304,713 24%

FY2025-2026 Strategic Plan Investment Area Awards

Strategic Plan Program Investment Awards Balance Budget

Maternal, Child and Family Health

Patient-Centered Prenatal Care $361,800 $164,053 45%

African American Infant Mortality Prevention $821,501 $43,282 5%

Thriving Families

Thriving Families Service Programs $844,900 $0 0%

LFC Community Learning Center $431,742 $423,242 98%

Early Learning

QRIS - Local High Quality Training & Technical Assistance $1,265,000 $335,000 26%

Systems-Building

Help Me Grow Fresno County & Central Valley $250,000 $0 0%

Innovation & Learning Partnerships $215,000 $132,365 62%

Commission Communications & Community Engagement $198,300 $53,000 27%

Strategic Plan Program Awards Total $4,388,243 $1,097,941 25%

Externally Funded Programs

First 5 CA IMPACT - Regional Fiscal Agent $21,600 $21,600 100%

First 5 CA IMPACT - Regional Hub Program $2,641,620 $2,641,620 100%

Externally Funded Programs Total $2,663,220 $2,663,220 100%

Accountability and Evaluation

Accountability and Evaluation Total $475,000 $400,000 84%

Strategic Plan Investment Areas Grand Total $7,526,463 $4,161,161 55%
7



FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY

FINANCIAL REPORT  | SEPTEMBER 2025 (25%)

Budget Expense Variance

07/01/2025-06/30/2026 07/01/2025-09/30/2025

Operating Expenses

Operating Expenses Total $1,941,070 $472,751 24%

Program Budget Awards & Operating Expenses Total $9,467,533 $4,633,912 49%

Continuing Contract Expenses - Awarded from Prior Budgets

Help Me Grow- Previously Awarded $425,000 $0 0%

Thriving Families Service Programs- Previously Awarded $3,585,976 $0 0%

African American Infant Mortality Prevention Contracts $513,452 $0 0%

Patient Centered Prenatal Care- Previously Awarded $622,203 $449 0%

QRIS - Local High Quality Training- Previously Awarded $1,052,500 $68,319 6%

Continuing Service Provider Expenses Total $5,146,631 $68,768 1%

Contingency - Committed

Operations Contingency Fund $1,500,000 $1,500,000 100%

Strategic Reserve Fund $2,000,000 $2,000,000 100%

0
%
0
%
0
%
0
%
6
%

1

8



Operating Checking
$37,062 

Program Checking
$983,243 

Treasury
$19,872,532 Investment Portfolio

$12,609,365 

Revenue Receivable
3,871,301

ASSETS

Total Assets: $571,602

9



CECET: California Electronic Cigarette Excise Tax - Effective as of July 1, 2022, 12.5% tax on electronic cigarettes containing or sold with nicotine. Of the tax collected, 12% is 

distributed into the California Children & Families Trust Fund to be distributed for First 5s statewide.

Prop 56 Backfill: Effective as of April 1, 2017, Prop 56 increased the excise tax rate on cigarettes, e-cigarettes, and other tobacco products by $2.00 per pack cigarettes. The 

passed proposition included an 18% back-fill to funds and legislation affected by its passing including Prop. 10 for revenue loss due to reduced tobacco consumption.

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

FY
99/00

FY
00/01

FY
01/02

FY
02/03

FY
03/04

FY
04/05

FY
05/06

FY
06/07

FY
07/08

FY
08/09

FY
09/10

FY
10/11

FY
11/12

FY
12/13

FY
13/14

FY
14/15

FY
15/16

FY
16/17

FY
17/18

FY
18/19

FY
19/20

FY
20/21

FY
21/22

FY
22/23

FY
23/24

FY
24/25

Propostion 10 Revenue Historical Chart

CECET

Prop. 56 Backfill

Prop. 10 Revenue

10



Agenda Item 6 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

December 10, 2025 – 12:00 p.m. 
 

2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6      
 
TO:  Children & Families Commission of Fresno County 
  
FROM:  Fabiola González, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Agreement with Children’s Funding Project for a Child Care Cost Modeling Cohort 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve an agreement with Children’s Funding Project for Fresno County’s participation in the 
California Strategic Public Financing Cohort focused on child care cost modeling in an amount not to 
exceed $18,000 for an 18-month term.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
In partnership with Funding the Next Generation, its state-level affiliate in California, the Children’s 
Funding Project (CFP) is launching an 18-month cohort learning opportunity for up to six 
communities across the state. The cohort’s aim is to build local capacity and equip communities with 
tools and skills to: understand the cost modeling process, develop a custom child care cost model for 
their community and explore emerging funding strategies to fill the gap between current funding and 
the true cost of programming. While this cohort learning opportunity is solely focused on a child care 
cost model as the end product, the concepts and tools can be applied to other areas impacting early 
childhood (i.e., home visitation). Confirmed cohort participation by other California communities, 
include San Diego, Inland Empire, Sacramento, and Los Angeles.  
 
CFP is a national nonprofit organization that helps communities expand equitable opportunities for 
children and youth through strategic public financing. CFP has extensive experience in cost modeling 
for early care and education programs nationwide and in leading collaborative efforts to identify 
funding sources that fill the gap between current funding and the true cost of achieving community 
goals. Since 2018, CFP has supported communities across the country with technical assistance to 
secure $1 billion in new public funding for children and youth. 
 
One of the investment priorities of Early Matters Fresno – the coalition of early childhood 
organizations coming together to collaborate, share evidence, and streamline community supports for 
young families for which First 5 Fresno County serves as the backbone entity – is Quality Child Care 
and School Readiness focused on expanding access to quality child care and strengthening the early 
childhood workforce. Commission staff met with Early Matters Fresno leads in this focus area, who 
agreed the cohort opportunity is timely and committed to contributing funds and sharing costs across 
local participating entities.  
 

11



Agenda Item 6 

As a next step, CFP will contract with one lead fiscal entity in each community; given First 5 Fresno 
County’s backbone role and administrative infrastructure, staff recommends that the Commission 
enter into this agreement on behalf of Fresno County.  
 
Alignment with 2025-2030 Strategic Plan: The proposed partnership aligns with the Early Learning 
focus area of the Commission’s Strategic Plan with the goal to increase our community’s capacity to 
provide quality, accessible, and inclusive early learning and care opportunities for every child and 
family, across rural and urban neighborhoods.  
   
Short-term goal(s) and long-term outcomes: The short-term goal is to build community capacity to 
more accurately estimate the true cost of child care, identify funding gaps and develop a pilot project 
to emerge for Early Matters Fresno to scale. The long-term goal is to develop sustainable financing 
strategies to expand access to quality child care and strengthen the early learning workforce in Fresno 
County. 
 
Procurement: The Commission’s procurement policy allows the Commission to select a vendor via 
sole source if, among other things, the vendor’s capabilities and experiences are so unique that no 
other vendor may comparably meet the Commission’s needs. Children’s Funding Project is the only 
entity currently offering this cohort learning opportunity focused exclusively on child care financing 
across California communities. While these tools and models can be provided in a consultant-based 
approach, a cohort style with multiple communities focused on one focus area offers peer learning and 
reduced costs. 
 
Fiscal Impact: The total cost for participation in the California Strategic Public Financing Cohort is 
not to exceed $18,000 for the 18-month term beginning February 2026 and concluding September 2027. 
The Commission’s share is estimated to range between $4,500 - $6,000, depending on final cost 
sharing allocation among 3-4 community partners. Funds will be allocated from the QRIS-Child Care 
Workforce Quality Training & Technical Assistance line item from the Approved 2025-2026 Agency 
Budget. 

 
CONCLUSION:  
 
Partnering with the Children’s Funding Project presents a unique and timely opportunity to advance 
local collective efforts on Quality Child Care and School Readiness. Our goal is that by the end of this 
cohort, our community will be equipped with the tools and skills to develop a comprehensive cost 
model, with the goal of launching a pilot project that the Commission can help scale through the Early 
Matters Fresno coalition. If the Commission does not approve this agreement, Fresno County may 
lose the chance to participate in this statewide initiative and access specialized technical assistance. 

12



Agenda Item 7 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

December 10, 2025 – 12:00 p.m. 
 

2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 
 
TO:  Children & Families Commission of Fresno County 
 
FROM:  Fabiola González, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Evaluation Activities Update  
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
The California Children and Families Act requires outcome-based accountability and evaluation from 
local First 5 county commissions.  Following the State Annual Report presentation at the October 2025 
Commission Meeting, the Commission requested an update on First 5 Fresno County’s evaluation 
activities related to participant outcomes and geographic location. Figures #1 and #2 provide an 
overview of geographic data collected during Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and additional data fields 
collected by current First 5 Fresno funded partners providing direct services to children, caregivers 
and early childhood professionals.   
 
During this informational presentation staff will also provide a copy of the 2020-2025 Cumulative 
Report summarizing key learnings and recommendations from the evaluation of the 2020-2025 
Strategic Plan core investment areas, which Harder+Company Community research provided an 
overview of during the April 2025 Commission Meeting.  Staff is also working with the Commission’s 
newly contracted evaluation firm, Learning for Action, to develop a theory of change and subsequent 
evaluation activities and data collection efforts under the Commission’s 2025-2030 strategic plan. 
Once finalized staff will provide a follow-up presentation on the 2025-2030 theory of change and 
evaluation design. 
 
Figure 1: Participants in First 5 Funded Programs by Geographic Area (Fiscal Year 2024-2025) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



Agenda Item 7 

Figure 2: Current Data Fields for First 5 Funded Partners Providing Direct Services 
The below demographic information is collected to comply with First 5 California reporting 
requirements and support contract monitoring and local evaluation efforts. In addition to the 
information below, the 2020-2025 strategic plan evaluation included focus groups, interviews and 
surveys individualized to specific investments (e.g. Help Me Grow, Community Health Teams, and 
Thriving Families) with findings summarized in a cumulative report.  
 

Demographic Data Fields 
Participant Counts 

Children ages 0-2 and 3-5 years old 
Parents/caregivers 
Early childhood professionals 

Race/Ethnicity for Participants Primary Language for Participants 

Alaskan Native/Native American 
Asian 
Black/African American 
Hispanic/Latino 
Hmong 
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 
White 
Unknown 
Two or more races/ethnicities  
Other 

English 
Spanish 
Indigenous Languages of Mexico 
Cantonese 
Korean 
Hmong 
Mandarin 
Vietnamese 
Unknown 
Other 

Zip Codes/Geographic Area for Participants 

Fresno/Clovis zip codes = urban 
All other zip codes = rural 
Unknown 

 
Service/Activity Report Narrative Questions 

1) Number of participants (by population type) 
for each scope of work activity/service during the 
reporting period 
 
2) Status of each activity/service  
 
- No activities this reporting period  
- In-progress as anticipated  
- In-progress and experiencing challenges  
- Completed 
 
2a) Brief written update on each 
activity/service (e.g. how often an activity took 
place, how many individuals attended, what 
workshop topics were covered, etc.)  
 
2b) Describe any challenges/barriers that 
occurred or issues that have been raised 
during the reporting period that are impacting 
this activity/service.  
 
What, if any, adjustments, did/does the partner 
make/intend to make? " 

 
Question 1: What impacts, both intended and 
unintended, have you seen in the families (or 
providers) that participated in the 
program/services?  
 
 
 
Question 2: What factors have had an impact on 
your program, whether positive or negative?  
 
 
 
Question 3: Provide a short story of how your 
program/project affected a child, family and/or 
provider this reporting period.   

 

14



Agenda Item 8 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

December 10, 2025 – 12:00 p.m. 
 

2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 
 
TO:  Children & Families Commission of Fresno County 
 
FROM:  Fabiola González, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Strategic Plan Focus Area Presentation: Early Learning  
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
 
The Commission’s 2025-2030 Strategic Plan includes three focus areas: Early Learning, Thriving 
Families, and Maternal, Child, and Family Health. During this and upcoming Commission meetings, 
staff will provide an overview of each focus area, including local context and how the Commission has 
and will partner, advocate and invest in each area.   
 
This first presentation will highlight the Early Learning focus area and the Commission’s priority to 
increase our community’s capacity to provide quality, accessible and inclusive early learning and care 
opportunities for every child and family, across rural and urban neighborhoods.  In Fresno County, 
only 18% of children with working parents have access to licensed child care. At the same time, only 
35% of 3 and 4 year-olds are enrolled in preschool or transitional kindergarten. Addressing this 
national-level crisis will take a multi-pronged approach including, but not limited to: increasing access 
and affordability, enhancing workforce recruitment and retention, and promoting quality care 
throughout all types of child care settings.   
 
This presentation will highlight the current child care crisis, discuss the three main drivers—
affordability and access, workforce shortages, and quality of care—and outline the Commission’s 
ongoing efforts to address these challenges. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



Agenda Item 9 

FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

December 10, 2025 – 12:00 p.m. 
 

2405 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 9      
 
TO:   Children & Families Commission of Fresno County 
 
FROM:  Fabiola González, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Executive Director’s Report 
 
This report intends to keep the Commission informed of the Executive Director’s local and statewide 
activities and involvement that further the vision and mission of the Commission and are in support 
of strengthening our early childhood systems of care. 
 
General Administration Update 
 

• On November 5th, we officially closed escrow on the Huron property.  
 

• Through our new partnership with the Fresno County Chamber of Commerce, we are still 
accepting nominations through December 12th for the 2026 Child-Friendly Business of the 
Year Award! https://fresnochamber.com/child-friendly-business/  
 

Upcoming Funding Opportunity for Community-Based Organizations 
 

• With the Commission's current Thriving Families three-year funding opportunity set to term 
at the end of the fiscal year, development is underway for a new procurement focused on 
community-based organizations directly supporting young children and their families across 
Fresno County. To inform the design and content of the application staff released a public 
survey to announce the upcoming funding opportunity and gather feedback on what local 
organizations find helpful in a funding application and how First 5 funding can best support 
organizations and the families they serve in the next year.  The new funding opportunity will 
be released in January 2026. 

 
Local and Statewide Involvement in Early Childhood Efforts 

 
• Our 2nd Quarter Progress Update (Aug-Oct 2025) on books arriving in the homes of children 

in our community since launching Dolly Parton’s Imagination Library of Fresno County 
back in February:  

o Over 55,000 books have been mailed out to over 10,000 children across Fresno County 
o Over 1,000 children have graduated from the program 
o 23% of children reside in our rural communities and 19% of children are enrolled in the 

Bilingual-Spanish library option. 
o Approximately 23% of funds raised have been spent 

 
  

16

https://fresnochamber.com/child-friendly-business/


Agenda Item 9 

Administrative Agreements and Renewals 
 
Pursuant to the Commission’s Accounting Policies and Procedures, which grant the Executive 
Director the authority to “execute operating contracts that are administrative in nature and affect the 
day-to-day operations of the Commission (no dollar limit)” and, “to renew agreements within the 
originally approved term, including its approved renewal period, and within the approved contract 
amount without additional Commission approval,” the following agreements will be renewed based 
on satisfactory performance:  
 
Information Technology Services 
Agency: Unity IT 
Amount: $25,000 
Term: July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026 
  
Internet Services 
Agency: Comcast 
Amount: $9,000 
Term: July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2027 
 
Glow! Group Prenatal Care Contractor Network 
Agency: Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 
Amount: No-cost extension 
FY2025-26 Proposed Revised Budget Line Item: Patient-Centered Group Prenatal Care 
Term: January 1, 2026 - December 31, 2026 
 
Glow! Group Prenatal Care Contractor Network 
Agency: Reading and Beyond 
Amount: No-cost extension 
FY2025-26 Proposed Revised Budget Line Item: Patient-Centered Group Prenatal Care 
Term: January 1, 2026 - December 31, 2026 
 
Glow! Group Prenatal Care Contractor Network 
Agency: West Fresno Family Resource Center 
Amount: No-cost extension 
FY2025-26 Proposed Revised Budget Line Item: Patient-Centered Group Prenatal Care 
Term: January 1, 2026 - December 31, 2026 

17


	A01 - Agenda - 2025
	FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY
	ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY

	A04 - Consent Agenda
	FIRST 5 FRESNO COUNTY
	ADMINISTERED BY CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION OF FRESNO COUNTY

	A04a - 10.29.25 Minutes
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NO. 4a

	A05 - Agenda - Staff Report- SEPT24 Financial Report
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 5

	A05 Financial Report September 2025
	A05ii - Financial Charts Sept2025
	A05iii - Historical Chart R1225
	A06 - Agreement with Children's Funding Project
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 6

	A07 - Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Evaluation Activities Update
	A08 - Strategic Plan Focus Area Presentation
	A09 - Executive Director Report DRAFT
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 9




